
FACSIMILE 410-810-2932 TELEPHONE 410-778-7475 

Kent County Board of Appeals 

 Kent County Government Center  
400 High Street 

Chestertown, Maryland 21620 

 

 

County Commissioners Hearing Room 

MEETING TO BE HELD VIRTUALLY via CONFERENCE CALL 

 
COVID-19 Special Announcement Regarding Meeting Attendance 

 
In response to the State of Emergency, individuals must refrain from attending meetings. Board of Appeals meetings are live streamed 
(https://www.kentcounty.com/commissioners/meeting-live-video), and citizens may call in with questions when the Chair opens the 
floor for comment.  
 
To participate via Microsoft Teams:   

1. Call 1-872-239-8359  
2. Enter Conference ID: # 943 636 554 

  
To participate via the Kent County Conference Bridge service:   

1. Call 410-810-2213  
2. Enter PIN number 55266  

  
Please mute your phone / device until the Chair opens the floor for comment.  

 

 

AGENDA 
 

Monday, October 19, 2020 

7:00 p.m. 

 
APPLICATIONS FOR REVIEW: 

  

20-34 Melinda M. Zupon – Special Exception – Adaptive Reuse of Historic Structure 

4959 Piney Neck Road, Rock Hall, Maryland – Fifth Election District – Community Residential “CR” 

(Staff: Rob Tracey)………………………………………………………………………………………. BOA Decision 

 

 

 
APPLICANT OR REPRESENTATIVE MUST BE PRESENT 

 
APPLICANTS ARRIVING MORE THAN 10 MINUTES AFTER THE SCHEDULED HEARING WILL NOT BE HEARD AND 

WILL BE RESCHEDULED AT THE APPLICANT’S EXPENSE. 

  
Meetings are conducted in Open Session unless otherwise indicated.  All or part of the Board of Appeals meetings can be held in closed 

session under the authority of the MD Open Meetings Law by vote of the members.  Breaks are at the call of the Chairman.  Meetings are 

subject to audio and video recordings. 

 

Please note that times listed on the agenda are only estimates; however, projects will not be reviewed prior to their scheduled time.  

Applicants will be given the time necessary to assure full public participation and a fair and complete review of all projects.  Therefore, 

the time each application is heard may be later than the time indicated on the agenda.  Items on this agenda are subject to change due to 

cancellation of projects.   

 

Other business without assigned times may be discussed during the course of this meeting as time allows. 



Kent County Board of Appeals 
August 17, 2020 
Page 1 of 2 
 

   Page 1 of 2 
 

MINUTES 
 
Meeting: Kent County Board of Zoning Appeals 
Date:  August 17, 2020 
Time:  7:00 P.M. 
Location: Virtual Meeting/County Commissioners Hearing Room, 400 High Street, Chestertown, Maryland 
 

Agenda Item/Case Sitting for the Board Action Taken Vote 

MINUTES: July 20, 2020 

20-26 Dixie Land Energy – Set 
Back Variance (Side & Rear 
Yards) 

– The applicant is requesting an 85-
foot variance to both sides and a 50-
foot variance to the rear yard, from 
the required 100-foot setback, to 
construct a liquid propane and fuel 
oil storage and distribution facility. 
 
The property is located along the east 
side of Maryland Route 299 on the 
north side of Massey (Sassafras 
Road) in the First Election District 
and is zoned Industrial “I”. 
 
Applicant: 
Kevin Shearon, representing Dixie 
Land Energy, LLC. 
 
Kevin Price, representing Dixie Land 
Energy, LLC. 
 
All were sworn in. 
 
Staff: 
Stephanie Jones, Environmental 
Planner. 
 
No correspondence was received. 
 
Mr. Mackey provided an update of 
the Comprehensive Re-Zoning 
project and reminded everyone of the 
first public forum on Tuesday, 
August 18, 2020 at 6 P.M. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Dr. Albert Townshend, 
Chairperson 
 
Joan Horsey, Member 
 
John Massey, Member 
 
David Hill, Alternate 
Member sitting in observing 
capacity only 
 
Mr. Christopher Drummond 
Attorney for the Board 
 
Brian Jones, Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Minutes approved as presented 
 
 
Based on the applicant’s 
testimony: 
 
• The variance will not cause a 
substantial determent to adjacent 
or neighboring properties. 
• The proposed development is 
consistent with adjacent uses that 
include a large grain storage 
facility, a large stone stockpile 
yard, a multi-track railroad, and a 
Crop Production Services 
operation.  
•Granting of the variance will not 
negatively change the character 
of the neighborhood. Many of the 
surrounding uses are also storage 
facilities with a distribution 
component. 
• Granting of the variance is 
consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan by locating 
industrial uses on Industrial 
zoned properties. 
• The practical difficulty arose 
from applying the 100-ft setbacks 
from all property lines resulting 
in no usable or developable area. 
• The practical difficulty was not 
caused by the applicant’s own 
actions, but rather the nature of 
the zoning and, more 
importantly, the surrounding 
zoning. If the adjacent properties 
were also zoned industrial, the 
side and rear setbacks would only 
be 15-ft. 
• Without a variance, there would 
be no usable area for the 
property.  
• The property is not in the 
Critical Area. 
• No construction has begun on 
the project. 

Unanimous 
Approval 
 
Unanimous 
Approval 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Kent County Board of Appeals 
August 17, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
 

   Page 2 of 2 
 

Agenda Item/Case Sitting for the Board Action Taken Vote 

Ms. Horsey made a motion to  
grant the variance with the 
condition that the applicant shall 
secure final site plan approval 
from the Planning Commission 
and begin construction within 
one year. 
 
Mr. Massey seconded the 
motion; all were in favor. 
 

Adjourn 
 

 Ms. Horsey made a motion to 
adjourn the meeting, and Mr. 
Massey seconded the motion; the 
motion passed with all in favor. 
The meeting adjourned at 7:45 
P.M. 

Unanimous 
Approval 

 
 
                
Dr. Albert Townshend, Chairman      Brian Jones, Clerk 



FACSIMILE 410-810-2932 TELEPHONE 410-778-7475

Kent County Planning Commission 

Kent County Government Center 
400 High Street 

Chestertown, Maryland 21620 
October 5, 2020 

Dr. Al Townshend 
Kent County Board of Appeals 
400 High Street  
Chestertown, MD  21620 

RE:  #19-59:  Melinda Zupon 
Special Exception for Adaptive Reuse of a Historic Structure 

Dear Dr. Townshend: 

At its October 5, 2020 meeting, the Kent County Planning Commission reviewed the application of Melinda Zupon for a special 
exception for an adaptive reuse of a historic structure. Ms. Zupon proposes to renovate the existing two-story dwelling into a 
private office/storage structure. The 1.99-acre property is zoned Community Residential, “CR”, and located in the 5th Election 
District. Following a review of all applicable laws and the Comprehensive Plan, the Planning Commission voted to send a 
favorable recommendation on the special exception conditioned upon site plan approval.  

The Planning Commission cited the following findings of fact: 

▪ The proposal is consistent with many comprehensive plan strategies. 

▪

▪

▪

▪

▪

▪

▪

▪

▪

▪

▪

▪

▪

▪

The 1.99-acre property is zoned Community Residential, CR, and is located approximately 3 miles south-west of the 
Town of Rock Hall. 
The applicant proposes to renovate the existing two-story dwelling into a private office/storage structure. The 
applicant plans to construct a single-family dwelling to live in and the existing structure will become an accessory 
structure. 
Although the property is not listed in the Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties, the applicants thorough 
research demonstrates the structure’s historic nature.  
The structure has been determined to be historically significant.  
Extensions or enlargements of the structure will not exceed 25% of the gross floor area. 
The parcel will be accessed by an existing driveway. The proposed use will not create additional traffic. The 
landscaping is in keeping with the character of the building and neighborhood.  
The site is served by public sewer and private water.  
In a deteriorating condition for decades, the restoration of the structure should have a positive impact on property 
values.  
The applicant has outlined the use of the property, which is specific and clearly defined and should not have a 
negative impact on property values. 
The number of dwellings will not exceed the density permitted in Community Residential Zoning District.  
The proposed use does not create an unacceptable impact by way of noise, odor, noxious materials or other 
nuisances.  
The proposed renovations to the structure should not negatively impact water quality or the overall habitat onsite.  
The proposed use is consistent with many aspects of the purpose and intent of the Community Residential Zoning 
District.  
Final approval of the special exception is conditioned upon minor site plan approval.  

Sincerely, 

Kent County Planning Commission 

Elizabeth H. Morris 
Chairman 
EHM/rwt 



                
Melinda Zupon: Special Exception- Adaptive Reuse of a Historic Structure - 1 

 

 
 

 

 

Kent County Department of Planning, Housing, and Zoning 
 
To:  Kent County Board of Appeals 
From:        Rob Tracey, Community Planner  
Meeting:    October 19, 2020  
Subject:     Melinda Zupon: Special Exception- Adaptive Reuse of a Historic Structure 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Request by Applicant  
Ms. Zupon is requesting a special exception for an adaptive reuse of a historic structure on her property 
located at 4959 Piney Neck Road. Ms. Zupon proposes to renovate the existing two-story dwelling into a 
private office/storage structure. According to the applicant’s research, the existing structure is on land that 
can be traced back to an original land grant on January 20, 1658 to John Langford. The existing house was 
built in the mid to late 1800s based on deeds, property taxes, and census records. The house is not listed on 
the Maryland Historic Inventory of Properties. The 1.99-acre property is zoned Community Residential, CR, 
and located in the 5th Election District. This property is located approximately 3 miles south-west of the 
Town of Rock Hall.  
 

Public Process 
Per Maryland State Law and Article VII, Section 6.2 of the Kent County Land Use Ordinance the Planning 
Commission shall send a recommendation to the Board of Appeals on special exceptions for the adaptive 
reuse of historic structures.  
 

Summary of Staff Report  
The applicant has addressed all specific and general special exception standards. The intent of the special 
exception provisions is to provide for certain uses with unique characteristics. The Commission must 
consider the impact of the uniqueness of these characteristics upon neighboring uses, the surrounding area, 
and the public need for the particular use at the particular location.  Limitations and standards are established 
by the special exception performance standards.  
 
This application addresses all standards and outlines limitations on its proposed uses onsite. There is a 
definite uniqueness to the applicant’s site and the historic structure specifically. The use as proposed, in 
conjunction with the limitations outlined, offers a novel community interface with a valuable historic 
structure.  
 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of the special exception conditioned upon site plan approval. 

 
 
 
 
 



                
Melinda Zupon: Special Exception- Adaptive Reuse of a Historic Structure - 2 

 

PRELIMINARY STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  Kent County Board of Appeals  
SUBJECT:   Melinda Zupon – Special Exception, Adaptive Reuse of Historic Structure  
DATE:  October 15, 2020 
 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL 
 
Ms. Zupon is requesting special exception for an adaptive reuse of an historic structure on her property 
located at 4959 Piney Neck Road. Ms. Zupon proposes to renovate the existing two-story dwelling into a 
private office/storage structure. The applicant plans to construct a new single-family dwelling to live in and 
the existing structure will become an accessory structure. According to the applicant’s research, the house is 
on land that can be traced back to an original land grant on January 20, 1658 to John Langford. The existing 
house was built in the mid to late 1800s based on deeds, property taxes, and census records. The house is not 
listed on the Maryland Historic Inventory of Properties.  
 
The 1.99-acre property is zoned Community Residential, CR, and located in the 5th Election District. The 
property is currently improved with a two-story dwelling. The surrounding area is characterized by agricultural 
and forested land with sparse residential development. This property is located approximately three miles 
south-west of the Town of Rock Hall.  
 
RELEVANT ISSUES 
 
I. Special Exception – Specific Standards for Adaptive Reuse of Historic Structures 

   
A.  Comprehensive Plan:   

• The County seeks the adaptive reuse of historic structures and resources as 
appropriate, through the development review process. (Page 127) 

• Assist property owners in preserving historic sites. (Page 124) 
 

B.  Applicable Laws: Article V, Section 6.3 identifies the adaptive reuse of historic structures as a 
principal use permitted as a special exception in the CR District, subject to site plan review 
and standards found in Article VII. 

 
 Article VII, Section 7.4 of the Kent County Land Use Ordinance authorizes the Kent County 

Board of Appeals to grant a special exception for the adaptive reuse of historic structures in 
the CR District provided the application complies with the following: 

 
a. Structures shall be listed in the Kent County Historic Site Survey or approved as a 

historically significant structure by the Planning Commission. 
b. It is shown that exterior changes to site structures will be minimized.  Extensions or 

enlargement of the principal and accessory structures may not exceed 25% of the 
gross floor area of each individual building above that which existed as of August 1, 
1989.  Enlargements shall be designed in keeping with the character of the building. 

c. Landscaping is in keeping with the character of the building. 
d. The site must have access to a public road adequate to handle traffic generated.  The 

proposed use shall not generate traffic of a type or amount inappropriate for all access 
roads and the surrounding area. The use does not require road improvements 
detrimental to the character of the area. 



                
Melinda Zupon: Special Exception- Adaptive Reuse of a Historic Structure - 3 

 

e. The number of dwellings shall not exceed the density permitted in the district in which 
the structure is located. 

f. The proposed use does not create an unacceptable impact by way of noise, odor, 
noxious materials or other nuisances. 

g. In CRD, adaptive reuse projects shall be limited to non-commercial and non-industrial 
uses. 

 
C.  Staff and TAC Comments:  

a. The property is located on Piney Neck Road outside of Rock Hall. According to the 
applicant’s research, the house is on land that can be traced back to an original land 
grant on January 20, 1658 to John Langford. The house itself dates to 1860-1880 
based on deeds, property taxes, and census records. The structure is not listed in the 
Maryland Historic Inventory of Properties (MIHP). Please see the attached narrative 
relative to the history of the building and the overall project proposal. 

b. The applicant intends to preserve the history of the property and proposes minimal 
alteration while ensuring the stability and longevity of the structure. The applicant 
proposes to remove a small kitchen/bath located on the rear of the house that is in 
poor condition. The resulting size of the house will be approximately 960 square feet.  
No additions to the structure are proposed at this time.  

c. The site plan identifies existing forest on the south east portion of the property. 
Landscaping is in keeping with the character of the building.  

d. The applicant proposes access to the site from the existing driveway on Piney Neck 
Road. There is currently no access point from the site to Crouches Lane. The 
proposed use will not generate traffic.  

e. The number of dwellings does not exceed the density permitted in the Community 
Residential district.  

f. The proposed use does not create an unacceptable impact by way of noise, odor, 
noxious materials or other nuisances.  

 
III.  Special Exception - General Standards  
 

A.  Comprehensive Plan:   

• The County will continue to promote the compatible adaptive reuse of significant 
historic structures through the use of flexible protocols. (Page 124) 

 
B.  Applicable Law: Article VII, Section 2 of the Kent County Land Use Ordinance requires that 

the Board of Appeals make findings on the following where appropriate: 
 

1. The nature of the proposed site, including its size and shape and the proposed size, 
shape, and arrangement of structures; 

2. Traffic Patterns; 
3. Nature of surrounding area; 
4. Proximity of dwellings, houses of worship, schools, public structures, and other places 

of public gathering; 
5. The impact of the development or project on community facilities and services; 
6. Preservation of cultural and historic landmarks, significant natural features and trees; 
7. Probable effect of noise, vibration, smoke and particulate matter, toxic matter, odor, 

fire or explosion hazards, or glare upon surrounding properties; 
8. The purpose and intent of this Ordinance as set forth in Article II; 
9. Design, environmental, and other standards of this Ordinance as set forth in Article V; 



                
Melinda Zupon: Special Exception- Adaptive Reuse of a Historic Structure - 4 

 

10. The most appropriate use of land and structure;  
11. Conservation of property values; 
12. The proposed development’s impact on water quality; 
13. Impact on fish, wildlife and plant habitat; 
14. Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan, Land Use Ordinance, and where applicable 

the Village Master Plan; 
15. Consistency with the Critical Area Program; and 
16. Compatibility with existing and planned land use as described in the Comprehensive 

Plan, Land Use Ordinance, and where applicable the Village Master Plan. 
 
C.  Staff and TAC Comments:  

1. The property is currently improved with a two-story dwelling. The site is screened by 
mature trees along the south-east portion of the property with open areas along the 
north and west property lines.  

2. The site will continue to be accessed by the existing driveway. The project will not 
generate additional traffic to the area.  

3. The surrounding area is characterized by sparse residential development along Piney 
Neck Rd. Otherwise, the property is surrounded by both agricultural and forested 
land.  

4. This property is located approximately three miles south-east of the Town of Rock 
Hall where the closest churches, schools, and places of public gathering are located. 

5. The Kent County Department of Public Works commented that the existing house 
will need to be disconnected from sewer and water services at the owner’s expense.  

6. The purpose of the CR District is to provide for single family residential development 
in areas of existing residential development, together with facilities and accessory uses 
normally compatible with residential surroundings, and at the same time to permit 
agricultural uses and to preserve open spaces and rural character. This district is in 
areas near existing developed areas, villages and incorporated towns. The proposed 
use is consistent with the intent of this district.  

7. The Comprehensive Plan and the Ordinance encourage the preservation of historic 
structures. The full scope of the proposal of the uses onsite has been described, 
identified, and limited by the applicant in the narrative.  

8. In a deteriorating condition for decades, the restoration of this property should have a 
positive impact on property values. The applicant has outlined use of the property 
which is specific and clearly defined which should not have a negative impact on 
property values. 

9. The proposed demolition of the small kitchen/bath and the reduction in impervious 
surfaces will not negatively impact water quality or the overall habitat onsite.  

10.  The proposal is consistent with many comprehensive plan strategies preserving 
historic structures. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 
The applicant has addressed all specific and general performance standards. The intent of the special 
exception provisions is to provide for certain uses with unique characteristics. The Commission must 
consider the impact of the uniqueness of these characteristics upon neighboring uses, the surrounding area, 
and the public need for the particular use at the particular location.  Limitations and standards are established 
by the special exception performance standards.  

 
This application addresses all standards and outlines limitations on its proposed uses onsite. There is a 
definite uniqueness to the applicant’s site and the historic structure specifically. The use as proposed, in 



                
Melinda Zupon: Special Exception- Adaptive Reuse of a Historic Structure - 5 

 

conjunction with the limitations outlined, offers a novel community interface with a valuable historic 
structure.  

 
Staff recommends approval of the special exception conditioned upon site plan approval.  


































	October 19 2020_BOA_Agenda.pdf
	KC_BOA_Mins_August_17_2020_DRAFT.pdf
	ZUPON_ BOA Findings Letter.pdf
	BOA_PC_Zupon_Adaptive Reuse and Site Plan Review.pdf
	Zupon_SE_Application submittal.pdf
	Zupon Site Plan.pdf

